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TRIAL, d-c.

The trial of this young man for the murder of a female, to
whom he had paid his addresses, and who was pregnant by
him, had execited a strong interest in the public mind. = It
had been announced that the Court would enter upon the
trial at nine o’clock in the morning ; and by seven, groups
were seen moving towards the County Hall, under a well-
founded impression, that it would be difficult to gain-a con-
venient seat. Long before eight, the grand jury boxes and
those seats on the opposite side of the court, not immediately
occupied by the petty jury, as well as the benches in - front,
parallel with and below the bar, were crowdedly filled with
respectable persons, among whom was a large proportion of
elegantly dressed ladies. When the Judges and Counsel en-
tered the Court, andthe doors were thrown open for general
admission, the rush into the Hall was tremendous ; in a few
minutes, it was filled al* -ost to suffocation. Those seats usu-
ally appropriated to attornies and their clerks were taken
possession of and the a* 2nues within the bar completely
blocked up, when a ge¢ leman of the profession moved the

High Sheriff that the ¢= -« of t.e solicitors, &e. should be
cleared. Orders for tt  1pose were given, and the offi-
cers - exerted themselve 'l partial success to carry the

mandate into effect. A eou: derable time elasped before any
degree of order could be procured. When this obtained, the
prisoner was brought from below, and placed at the bar. He
1s a good looking young man, about 24 years of age ; of a
fair complexion, seemingly 5 feet 10 inches high ;. was gen-
teelly dressed in a blue coat & trowsers, and black waistcoat,
with a black handkerchief round his neck. |

- Counsel for the Prosecution, Messrs. Hill and ishwart r
For the Prisoner, Messrs. Cross & Williams.. . Attorney fo.
the prosecution, Mr. Hollins. For the prisoner, Mr.. Dicas

The jury having been sworn, the indictment was read be

¥ i
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Ar. Lloyd, the prothonotary, and the usual question being
put, the prisoner pleaded—NOT GUILTY

Mr. Hinr, the Altmue}? General, then rose, and stated the
case 1o the jury. This was an indictment against the prisoner
for wilful murder. It was unnecessary for him to ecall the
attention of the jury to the law of murder; he should only
:::nhserve, that the case which he had to'Tay befﬂ]e them' was
sapported only by mrf.,umsta,ntml evidetice ;but this species of
evidence, when'it w 4s connected am{ uubmken was ‘of! 'ﬂl
othiers the most strong and decisive.!'! And s the offenée
charged wasone of the most henious character, he wished to
call the serious attention ofthe j jury to the faets he had to lay
before them, and which e should afterwards be enabled to
prove to their satisfaction. - The learned gentleman recited
the circumstances -:,Dnuecttd with murder, J,llii then proceed-
ed to call witnessesin’ sapport of the prosecution.

Lst Witness— ?lfj.ﬁ*-.‘.'ﬂfﬁ!‘yﬁﬂf?‘}‘ﬁyﬂ-—l am smler to Mr. Mur-
rey, wuth whom the deceased lived asservant. . 1 recollect
the p] isoner coming to my brother’s hmﬁe on the first Sun-
day in January last. 'When he came, he enquired for Betty
Shawecross ; she was not in the house atihe time ; but 1 sent
for her, and s her go to him. 'He remained theré for Some
considerable time; T cannot say how long, 'bui probably
from three to ‘seven o’clock ; 1 saw them together.  Believes
Betty Shaweross was pregnant ; she was so from appearance.
1 never saw-the prisoner at our house at any other time. The
deceased had lived abont four yea . with my brother; she
was not followed by any other pe.son but thé prisoner ; no
one came to see her besides. When prisoner left the house,
the deceased asked leave to go a little way  with him ;1
granted her permission, but told lier not 1o stop'; she was
away about an hout. 1 remember a razor being shewn me,
which was‘said to have been found in the hlp]mﬂ 3 1t was on
the same day Betty Eaha,wcmqs was found murdered. 1 have
the entire management of ‘my brother’s house 5 there never:
wassuch arazorin the house ; 1 never saw ‘sueh a one there ;
1 can positively state of m}r own Lnﬂwledge there ﬁwa*s no.

- such razor.

- o the Court.—My bm‘ther, a servant bn_v,r, and aman on-
ly, reside in the house.
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 2d witness—Capt. Humphreys. 1 am a magistrate of this
county, ;; Mary Coups lived with.me as servant ; she left my;
service on: the 7th of January. last; she was pregnant at
the time, and filiated a child before me on the prisoner.
saw the prisoner at my house on;the ¢vening of the 7th of
January. 1.did not see him in company with Mary Coups.
1t had been settled before that the wedding was to take place
the following day ; and it was now understood in.my family,
that the piisoner had declined. Understanding he was in
my house, 1 sent for the prisoner, but he did not come to
‘me ;1 went to him, and remonstrated with him on his cruel-
ty and perfidy. = 1 mentioned to him the situation of Mary
Coups, and particularly her pregnaney. . He said he would
not. marry_her the next day, bat he would marry her. 1 then
asked him when he would fulfil his promise, he said he would
not fix a time, and gave as a reason, that his uncle and all
his relations were all opposed to his marrying her.* '
By Mr, Cross. Previous to this transaction, 1 was per-
fectly satisfied with the character and conduct of the prisoner.

* The subjoined letters, No. 1 and 2 written by 2 most respectable gentle-
man of the county, whose namie they bear, to a lady who felt deeply in-
terested ‘in the welfare of Mary Coups, and who had recommended and
placed her in his service, will illustrate the nature of‘the connection bhetween
the prisoner and that young woman, as well as some material parts of his
conduct towards her—

il No. 1.

<, DEar. Mapan—The brather of Mary Coups will deliver this to you,
and he will also communicate the dishonourable conduct of the person, to
whom she was engaged fo be married,—A fter being asked three times in the
Pagishi Church, and ths day fixed upon for the ceremony, in presence of
several of poor Mary’s family, Samuel Fallowes sent on the evening preced-
ing the 'suppﬂsed nuptials, the inclosed excuse.® I EIEI.-'-"E done and sal_d
every thing in my power to him, but in vain, and 1 haye issued my sarraut
to apprehmd_him on: his return this day from I#‘Inm-lms!ﬁ_r, to which place he
set put this morning with his cart, donbtless for the express purpose of
avoiding joining theparty at Church—lor the wedding was fixed lor to-day.
In order that Mary might no! be exposed bLeflove a beneh of maristrates,
and in presence of a multitude of persons, she has gone through the process
of filiation before me individually, and I have therefore directed fim to be
lodged in gaol until he finds sureties to, indemaify the Parish against any con-
sequences resulting frem his base and improper conduct.  As you hm_re uni-
formly for so many vears, befriended this poor girl, I trust that you will not

# Thisyefers toa lettor sent by Fallows declining li':l.l"". I;_mrl‘ifagc. :
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Sa WWitiess—Joseph  Barker. 1 am servant to Robert
Cheetham Murrey, Bredbury is three miles from Stockport,
but 1 do not know how far Stockport is from Bramall. 1
knew Betty Shawcross, the deceased, I saw her in the house
on the 21st March, about six o’clock in the evening. 1 did
not see her again until ten o’clock the next day. 1 had not
seen her before during that morning. A search was made
for her’; I sought for her, and found her in an outbuilding ;
a shippon ; a back building. There 1sa barn stands in front a
between the shippon and the house ; the shippon cannot be
seen from the house for the barn. When I found her I be-
lieve she was quite dead. In going from the house to the
shippon, it is necessary to go round the barn, and through a
gate. When I just opened the shippon door, I saw her lie
with her face towards the ground ; I pulled to the door again,

be induced entirely to withhold your protection from her hereafter. With
regard to Samuel Fallows, [ shall never speak to him again, and have already
put matters in train, for getting rid of him as a tenant.
“ I have the honour to be,
“ Dear Madam,
“ With respects to your father and family,
“ Your very chedient servant, ‘!
« SALUSBURY HUMPHREYS.
¢ Bramall-HaJa 8th; 182
No. 2.
¢ Bramall Hall, Jan. 15th, 1823.

“ Dear Madam—The certificate T will, if possible, get executed at the
general meeting of the magistrates to-morrow week ; I would send it imme-
diately, but the document must be signed by the parish officers, in presence
of two justiees. In the mean time, the township of Toft may be assuwed that
the acknowledgement given to the brother of Mary, and transmitted to the
overseers of her present residence, will be punctually and honourably ful-
filled. It was drawn up in haste at the vestry, aud is not strictly a legal
fnstrument ; but Hallworth and Cook, whose names are attached, are princi-
}Jal tenants of Mr. Davenport, and are also the*overseers of Bramall, so that

entertain no doubt of the result. The overseers of Toft are perfectly cor-
rectin standing upon sure ground, and I wiil second their endeavours without
delay; but Hallworth is at present occupied with a suit at the Quarter Ses-
stons, at Chester, and will pot return for some days, and his signature 15 ab-
solutely necessary. Samuel Fallowes has been in prison for 24 hours, but
at length two inhabitants of Stockport offered bail, and I was obliged to set
him'atTiberty. To the credit of Bramall, he could not find a friend resident
inthe township that would come forward. You may, dear madam, possibly
have heard, that another young woman, who formerly lived under his own
roof as servaut, has in every particular experienced the same fate as poor
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and went and told the man servant, that Betty was lying in
the shippon. Afterwards, Mary Twedale was called to go

to the deceased ; I believe she went, but I did not see her go.

I remember seeing the prisoner at my master’s house on the

first Sunday in the new year. I do not know how long he .
remained there ; he was in the house when I went in, and I
left him there when 1 came out. I did not see him take any

refreshment.

Ath Witness.— Mary Twedale. 1 live near Mr. Murrey’s

house at Bredbury.—On Saturday the 22d of March, I went
into Mr. Murrey’s shippon. I found a young woman there.
Betty Shawcross. She was laid on her belly with her face
to the floor. On being questioned as to the state of her dress,
witness said she had no cap on, but her cap lay by the side

of her; she had no handkerchief on, and 1 did not see any

handkerchief at all ; her breast was all uncovered ; her apron
was thrown over her right shoulder, and appeared to be fas-
tened to her bosom, in a way in which itis not usual to wear
aprons ; she was quite dead and cold. The witness being

o——n

Mary, and another family made equally miserable with her own.* I had
paved the way for getting rid of this villain as a tenant, but my attempts
have for one year heen defeated ; for yesterday, when at my pen in this very
room, he came and obtained an audience of his venerable and excellent
landlord, and drew from him a wriiten acreement for his farm. Al this
was effected unknown to either Mrs. Humphreys or myselt and Mr, Daven-
port now laments as much as ourselves thathe should have committed himself
to such aman. I had an excellent candidate for his saccessor, in my eye,
and suspecting this, might possibly have impelled him to out-wit the Cap-
tain, in which, I lament, he should have been but too successtul. [ do not
in general communicate to Mr. Davenport any evﬁutshth:u are lil:el}r to inter-
rupt the tranquility and repose, and this may account for his being so ready to
acqaiesre in the preposition made to him by Fallowes, for another year s

term in his farm ; and I had no suspicion that he would approach the old hall

after such conduct. - Mrs. Humphreys and her little girl are quite well, and
weall beg to return our acknowledgements and thanks for your ut.-ligiug and
kind enquiries. I trust your father and family are well, and restored to
vour usual spirits aiter the reeent ost you have experienced.  Your himble
friends ander this roof conduct themselves to our salistaction, and beg to
present their duty. o . : ,
% ] have the honour to be,

“ Dear Madam,
’ '« 'Your obedient cervant,” |
“ 5. PP IUMPHREYS.

# Alluding to the unfortunate deceased,

I ]
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desired to state whether she discovered any, and what kind
of wounds, said, the deceased had ]ﬂng bair ; which hung all
round her, so as that she could not at first see’ the nature of
the wounds ; that her hair was all clotted with the blood. 1
afterwards saw that her throat wascut on the left side ; there
were three cuts on her head, two on the upper part, ﬂnd one
on the back part; the larger wound was about an inch and a
half in length ; her right thumb was cut the whole length of
it; the back part of her left hand was very black ; there was
a bruise on her forehead; her upper lip wasblack and much

“swelled.  There was a quantity of blood under where she

lay, and another quantity about half a yard from her feet.
5th Witness — Robert Thorneley.* 1 live with Mr. Mur-
rey, at Bredbury. On the night of the 21st of March, 1 went -
to bed about twelve o’clock. 1n the course of the evening
the deceased gave me some directions about the door. 1n
consequence of those directions, 1 left the outer door unfas-
tened 1ill 1 went to bed. 1 saw the deceased in the house
about ten minutes or a quarter of an hour before 1 went to
bed. She had been out. 1 afterwards saw her go out of the
kitchen up the lobby, and thought she was going up to her
bed-room, but cannot tell whether she "did go there or not.
Soon after Mr. Murrey went to bed, and 1 secured the door.
1 have seen arazor said to have been found in the shippon
on the day of the murder. We had no suchrazor in our house
while I lived with Mr. Murrey. 1 have seen the prisoner at
our house ; this was on the first Sunday in the New Year.
He asked if Betty Shawcross was in ; she was not, but came
in about five minutes after ; he stayed at the house a consi-
derable time; I do not know how long, but it was more than
an hour. The prisoner was with the deceased in the kitchen.
At first, when the deceased and the prisoner came together, 1
and my mistress were both in the kitchen, but we both went
out and left them together. 1 do not know when he went

* ThLis witness is one of the most diminutive men we ever remember to
have seen; he did not appear to be above 40 inches high; a thin squeaking
voice; and spare in his person. He gave his evidence, however, with great
clearness and correctness.
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away, but 1 remember the deceased coming to ask her ‘per-
mission of her mistress to go out with him.

6th Witness.— Rebeaca Leigh. 1 live near Mr. Murrey’s,
at Bredbury. I recollect that on the 21st of March, Betty
Shawcross brought a letter to my house, and as she knew
I was going to Stockport market, she asked me to take it to
the landlady of the sign of the Plough, in Stockport. She
told me to see the landlady personally, and to ask her, if the
person to whom the letter was directed had been there that
day; and if not, whether she thought he would be there that
day. I wentand saw the landlady, and she told me she did
not know whether the person would be there. The deceased
had charged me to request the landlady to send the letter
with speed to him, if he did not come to her house. Does
not recollect that the deceased repeated the request more than
once. 1 delivered the letter to Mrs. Hickman, the landlady,
and told her the message. I returned home between two
and three o’clock. The deceased came to my house after
my return home ; she seemed wishful to have an answer, and
after 1 acquainted her, she went away.

7th Witness.—dAnn Hickman. 1am a landlady and keep
a public house at Stockport,—1 know the prisoner at the bar,
he always frequented my house. On Friday the 21st of
March he came there. 1 recollect a letter having been
brought from him on that day, by Rebecca Leigh. 1 deli-
vered that letter to him about half-past twelve o’clock. He
read itin my presence. 1 asked him if there was any mes-
sage to be returned ; hereplied, No; but 1 must say 1 deli-
vered it to him. 1 remember the direction on the letter was,
Samuel Fallowes, Bramall-green. 1 saw no other letter
from him on that day. On being questioned as to the
dress the prisoner wore, witness said he had on a black coat
and waistcoat, light small clothes, and leggings of a light co-
lour. It was the same dress as he usually wore.

Cross examined by Mr. Cross.—He has been constantly
in the habit of coming to my house for two years; and has
always borne anexcellent character. 1 did not pay any par-
tieular attention to his dress on that day more than common..

By the Court.—He wore the dress he usually did.

8th Witness.—Thomas Qakes—1 was seryant to the priso-
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ner in March last. [ recollect his going 10 Stockport mar-
keton Friday the 21st of that month; he set off about ten
o’clock in the morning. On witness being desired to describe
his dress, he said, he had on a black coat and waistcoat, cord
breeches, and light kerseymere leggings. The prisoner re-
turned from Stockpor fabout five o'clock in the afternoon;
he helped me to milk the cows that uight. He had the same
dress on then as w henhe went to market. 1 did not see my
master again 'that night after we had done milking the cows.
By the Court.—By the time we had done milking it was
rather better than half-past six o’clock. :
Evamination continued.—1 got my supper at home; the
prisoner did not get his supper with me that night, but he
commonly did. My master usually slept in the same room
with me. He used sometimes to go to bed with me, and
sometimes not. I went to bed that night about nine o’clock.
The prisoner was not often out at an evening. The prisoner
was not in bed when I went. 1 got up in the morning about
half-past five. I did not see the prisoner in bed, and if he
had been, I might not have seen him. On that morning I
went to drive the plough about seven o’clock. I did not see
my master that morning. I had my breakfast that morning ;
master usually gets his breakfast with me, but he did not
that morning. 1 returned from ploughing about ten o’clock
and then I saw my master. Our clocks are generally for-
warder than the clocks at Stockport.—When 1 first saw my
master, he was straifening out, (putting in order) the fold.
He had not then the same dress on, as on the day and night
before. The witness was here required to describe the dress
of prisoner when he saw him on the Saturday morning, an d
he proceeded as follows : He wore a light corded jacket, a .
black waistcoat, and an old pair of kerseymere breeches ; 1
never saw him with those breeches on before ; my master had
ne leggings on. The prisoner usually slept with a boy, Da-
niel Hallworth. There is a hedge near to the house were
clothes are sometimes hung to dry. I did notsee any clothes
hung there on that Saturday or on the Sunday morning.. 1
am. not sure that 1 saw the hedge on those days. 1 never
heard my master complain of being wet on the Friday ;
nor ever heard him say any thing about his clothes being

-



11

stolen on the Saturday, or at any other time before he was
taken up. I never heard itmentioned at all in the house. My
master was at home till they took him up.

Cross examined by Mr. Williams.—1 went to bed on the
Friday evening at nine. 1 have often got up without no-
ticing whether my master was in bed or not. My master
and me sometimes went to bed together, and sometimes not.

9th Witness.—John Walton. 1 was servant with the pri-
soner. 1 slept in the same room with him; I slept in that
room on the night of the 21st of March. I went to bed about
nine that night, and 1 did not see him; 1 did not see him in
the morning when 1 got up about five. Iremember him re-.
turning from Stockport market on the Friday. On that day
he wore a black coat and waistcoat, corduroy breeches, and
light-coloured leggings. After milking, 1 saw my master
come to the stable door; he then went out of the yard, and
went on a road leading to Stockport. 1 did not see him af-
terwards that night. The road that hewent leads also to
Bramall-green. The next time 1 saw him was on Saturday
about 12 o’clock. The clothes he then wore were a jacket, an
old black waistcoat, and kerseymere breeches, ; 1n ever saw
him wear those breeches before; they were torn on one
knee. 1 know the drying edge, but do not reeollect that1l
saw it on Saturday. 1 never heard my master complain of
losing any clothes; never heard him eomplain of having wet
clothes, and never heard him say he had put any out
to dry. : Z

19¢h Witness.—Jobn Stapeley Barratt.  This witness de-
posed as follows :—1 am the constable at Stockport. 1 appre.
hended the prisoner on Sunday the 23d of March, at his own
house. 1 asked him where he was on the night of Friday
the 21st; he told me, as soon as they had done milking, he
left home to go to Toft, to see a young woma n that was reg-
nant by him, but the night being so wet, when he got to
Mobberly, he returned back home, and arrived there abut
two o’clock in the morning. 1 enquired whether he weut to.
bed ; he replied he did not ; but that he sleptin an outbuild-
ing belonging to the house, upon some hay; he said he had
never called any where on the road going or coming, nor
seen any person he knew. 1 asked him th ereason why h did
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not go into his house, and he replied, he did not like to knock
the people up.—1n answer to a question by the court, wit-
ness said, Mobberiey was about ten miles from prisoner’s
house, and about two miles from. Toft. Prisoner further
said, that-about six o ‘clock 1n the nmrluﬂ;z;, while he lay up-
on thﬂ hay, he saw Thomas Stocks comng to feed the cattle,
but GtDEL& did not see Lim; he told me he slept upon the

hay till abont ten o’clock; tl;ut he then went mt::n the house

ci.auged his clothes, and wentinto the fieldsto look the sheep
over. . 1 asked him if he had eat any thing that morning,
and he told me he had not. 1 enquired of him where the
black coat was which 1 had seen him wear on the Friday
before at Stockport; he replied he had no black coat, only;
an old one. When 1 apprehended him, he bad a blue
coat on. | ;

1n answer to a question {rom the court, witness said, he
believes the coat the prisoner now wears was llite same he
had on when apprehended.

1 euqmred of the prlaum,i‘ where the black waistecat was
he wore on the Friday ; he said he had not on a black waist-
coat; it was a striped one. 1 asked where his corded
breeches were he then wore; hetold me, they were so wet
that hie had placed them . on 2 hedge to dry, and that some
person had Smlcn them from thence. On askmg him whether
he had told this circumstance to any one, he said he had made
no_enquiry Lnnrc:rm iz ithem, nor mentioned it to any of the
family. 1 then asked him, what had become of the kersey-
mere leggings he had on; he replied; he had given them
away to aman whe came begging on the Saturday afternoon. -

On eaquiring, whether he had not received a letter of Mis.

Hickman, on the ¥r l(lﬂ i, from BL“}" Shaweross, he answer-
ed that he had. 1 asked him, if l.u,ity Shawcross had ex-
pressed a wish in that letier to see him ? he said she had, and
wanted him to send some money tewards paying for a chud
she had had by him. T enguir ed what he had done with the
letter, when he said, he had burnt itin Mrs. Hickman’s par-
lour previous to hisleaving the house. 1 then began to search
the house far the Imhcst iat were missing, but found: NONE 3
in the afternoon th-:* outbuildings were searched by my or-
ders. l searc hed also fur an f}‘EfI razor, without success,_md
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could not hearthat any one had seen suech a thing., 1 ook
the prisoner before the coroner on Moaday the 24th Mareh;
the conversation 1 had. with him was put down in writing,
and read to kim before the coroner. Mr. Hollies, the coro-
ner, was presewt when the prisoner was examined.
_[Here Mr. Hollins read part of the muutes of the conver-
's.aj,il:,io'n, which, however, was not of material interest. |
. Barratt's depositions continued —On the prisoner’s exami-
nation before the inquest, the coroner cantioned the prisoner
to be careful in what he said. as it would be produced in evi-
dence against him. The prisoner then said, < What I told
Barratt on Sunday is all a lie, and there’s no truth in it.” He
was then questioned by the coroner, why he had given that
account, Prisoner replied. 1 cannot tell, but 1 have been
informed that pzople would come against me, and say any
thing,” The coroner said, if you have given a false account’
to. Barratt, will yon now tell us the truth? and then desired
him to go on with the truth. Prisoner then proceeded to state
to the coroner as follows: he said, a little after milking time
on Friday night, he went isto the fields to watch if some
poacher’s would coma to catch hares; he said the Bramall
kﬁ:ﬂper suspected him that he took the game, and he_tlmught'
he would go to clear himself; he did not-state why the Bram-
all hall keeper suspected him; he said he watched in the
fieldstillfive o’clock in the morning, and then returned home,
and sleptamong some hay. Bramall keeper fold him (prisoner)
e had found some gins in hisfields to catch hares with. Pri-_
soner had stated this latter circumstance before he said lie
thought he would go and watch himself, and gave it as his
reason. Prisoner said be slept in the outbuilding until about -
nine o’clock, when he went into the house. The coroner
asked him why he did not go to his bed as usual, and prisoner
replied he did not know, but he did not kike to disturb their
people. . | el el '
. By the Court.—1 am sure he said he returned about five’
o’clock, » : : : £y
The coroner asked himif he hadbroken his fast on the Satur-
day ‘morning ; he said he had not. He was then asked what
had become of the clothes he wore on the Friday ; and he
stated, that his black coat & waistcoat, his corded breeches,

h .
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and kerseymere leggings, were so wet with watching in the
fields all night, that he had pulled them off, and put them on
the hedge at the back of the building to dry ; that he forgot
to take them in on the Saturday night, and some person had
stolen them. The coroner asked him if he had made any en-
quiry after his clothes, and he replied he had not; he had not
mentioned ittoany part of his i.‘umly and the reason he gave
was, he thought it would disturb them. He was asked by
the coroner, if he had received a letter on the Friday from
Betty Shawecross, by Mrs.Hickman, and he said he had ; on
being questioned as to its contents, he said, that in the letter
Betty Shaweross wanted him to send some money towards
the child.* On its being inquired, by the corner, what he
had done with the letter, he said he had burntit. To a
question, how much was due to her, he replied about ten or
twelve shillings. He was asked when he had been atWood-
ley, (the house occupied by Mr, Murrey, and where the de-
ceased lived) he said, he was never there but once, and that
- wason a Sunday, atthe back of last year ; he said he stopped
there two or three hours; on being asked whether ‘he was
ever there before, he declared he'was not ; he stated that Bet-
ty Shawecross told him she had got a fresh sweetheart, and she
would have nothing no'more to dowith prisoner. The coro-
ner then said, if she had got a fresh sweetheart, and would
have no more todo with him, what occasion was there for his
stopping two or three hours. To this the prisoner made no
repl}f 1t was enquired whether -they had since renewed
their acquamtance, he denied it, and said they had not. The
examination of witness as to what ‘transpired before the in-
quest having closed, the counsel for the prosecution asked
witness, was the prisoner ever in your custody before ? Wit-
ness answered this and the other questions as follows :--Yes,
the prisoner was in' my custody in January last; 1 had a
warrant, signed by Captain Humphreys, for his apprehen-
sion; one of my assistants teok him and brought him to me ;

it for getting Mary Coups with child. 1 persuaded him 1o

* It seems that besides being pregnant by the prisoner the time nFthE mur-
der, the unfortunate deceased woman had borne a child to hlm, which is now
nearly four years old, and that he paid a weekly sum towards its maintainasice
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marty her, as she was a person of good character ; he said he
had no objection, but his uncle was against it ; his uncle
wished him to marry another person, but prisoner did not
say who she was; it was always his uncle’s wish that. he
should not marry Mary Coups ;- he sheuld not like to dis-
please his uncle, for he had IJeml a good friend to him. On
the following day, which was Saturday, prisoner told me he
would marry her, on account of his friends not coming near
him, and desired me to intercede with Captain Humphreys
to get him discharged that evening, for he should not like to
be married handeuffad. He asked me to go with him to Toft
on the following Fuesday, to fetch her, and he would marry

~her. Onthe evening of that day (saturday) two persons of-

fered bail for him; he was disch: arged, and then he said he
would not marry her.

Cross-evamined by Mr.Cross. - 1 am the goaler at Stock-
port, and have frequently many prisoners under my charge..
I do not keep a journal of the conversations which 1 have
with different persons, but particularly remember that 1 had
with Fallowes. 1 saw him at cJtDLLth‘t on the Friday, but
had no parlicilar reason to notice his dress. -To the best of
my Funowledge he had a black waisteoat on, but 1 will not
swear it. 1 g{}t to. his house on Sunday between eleven and
twelve o’clock. Prisoner had a sister living with him. 1
knew the prisoner, and the prisoner knew me. 1 have given
the questions and answers in the order 1 have related. 1 did
nol call upon the couastable of the township as 1 went to ap-

prehend him, nor did 1 think it necessary. 1t was Sunday
when 1 apprehended him, and on the Monday I took him
before the coroner. 1 have no doubt but many gentlemen
who were present at the inquest recollect the conversation 1
have stated. 1 thiak 1 have related all the conversation I
had with Fallowes, and what took place beforethe coroner. -

- Re-evamined. 1 won't swear as to the waistcoat, but 1 do

swear that the prisoner told me he had hung it out to dry.
11th witnéss— DavidC larke. ‘1 remember being at Stock-
port on the?1st of March. 1 saw the prisoner there between
6 and 7 o’clock that evening. 1t was from ten to twenty
yards of the market-place; he was going down the Millgate ;
that street leads to Bredbuly ; itis the regular turnpike road. |
1 knew the prisoner before, & have known him a year ortwo.
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Cross-evamined by Mr. Williams. 1 was within two or three

yards of him ; it was getting dusk. 1 had no conversation
11.1111 him. qtngkiunt is a throng place on the market day;
and many people were passmg and repassing at the time. 1
had no business with the prisoner. '

Re-evamined. 1 had often met the prisoner before, and 1
know him perfectly -

12th witness....James Ridoway (a boy ). 1 live with my fa-

“ther at Bramall. 1 heard of Betty Shawcross being murder-

ed on the Sunday morning. On the Saturday before this
Sunday 1 was at Croft Bridge, about 7 o’clock in the morn-
ing.. Croft Bridge is about 200 yards from the prisoner’s
house. 1 do not know the way to Bredbury, but 1 know
the way to Stockport. Croft Bridge is the way to the prison-
er's house. 1 have known the prisoner two years. 1 saw
him coming from under the cut of the bridge. 1 saw him
and hesaw me ; he had on a black coat and light breeches.
When the prisoner looked at me, he ran away from me on
the brook side. The way he ran was from his own house.
1 saw nothing more of him thatmorning.

" By the Court. How near was you to ) him when he looked
at you? Abouttwenty yards. 1 saw him very plain ; he
did not walk away from me, but ran, and ran swiftly.

Cyross-examined. 1know the prisoner’s uncle, Philip Fal-
Jowes, 1 did not see him that morning ; 1 did not speak to
the prisoner.

By the Court. 1 am ten years of age.

C‘f‘ﬂﬂ-' wamined. 1t was very light 1 saw the prisoner ; it
was about seven o’clock in the morning.

J&Fe n Barratt recalled. 1 know a l::riclrre called the Wo-
man’s Croft Bridge; it is distant from Fallowes’s hmﬁe from
150to 170 yards ; it is one road from the prisoner’s house to
Bredbury.

13th witness-—-William Haméfm;'z I am gamekeeper at -
Bramall-hall. The prisoner’s farm is next to Bramall-hall. |
1 know the prisoner at the bar. 1 never told him there was
any gins seton his farm. 1 never accused him of his being
suspected of destroying the game. 1 never told him that
poachers destroyed game there. I never told him to look
Hﬂ:El any gins. :
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14th witness—William Saxon. 1 live at Bredbury. 1 re-
member going to Mr, Murrey’s shippon on the 21st March,
to seech (seek) for any instrument with which the wounds
had been made. 1 founda razor about a yard and a half
from where the corpse lay. At the end of it there was a
piecenearly broken off. 1laid itin the window in the house
beside the corpse, and shewed it to Robert Thorniley ; it was
very bloody. 1 put amark upon it, and delivered itto Mr.
Hollins.

Joun BARRETT was again called, and preduced the razor.
The last witness identified it as the same which he had found
in the shippon.

Barratt evamined by Mr. Cross.—1 found two razors in
the prisoner’s house when 1Isearchedit; they appeared to be
new ones from the condition of the hafts and the pelish on
the blade; if they had been long in the prisoner’s possession,
they qauld not have been much used.

15th witness.—James Hodgkinson. 1 lived in the prison-
er’s service last year. I used to sleep with him in the same
room. I shaved myself in the house place, and with the
prisoner’s razor ; the one I shaved with was an old one; it
“was dark hafted, darker on one side than the other;the rivits
were broken.

By the Court.—Would you know it again? (much hesita-
tion.) I cannot tell. (The razor shewn to witness.) 1 can-
not positively swear that this is the same; it was the rivets
near the blade that was loose.

- By Mr. Cross.—The description I have now given was
from having seen it when shewn to me by Barrett.

By the Court.—It is like that he shaved with when at the
prisoner’s. The prisoner had two razors besides.

16th witness,--- Daniel Hallworth. 1 was servant to the
prisoner on the 21st of March last.—1 saw him on Tmlay
night in the fold with a candle, about half-past six o’clock.
I went to bed between eightand nine. Prisoner commonly
slept with me, he always slept with me; he wasnotin bed that
night when 1 went to bed; he wasnot in bed when 1 got up.
We usually went to bed at the same time. 1 went to fetch
some hay for the cattle about a quarter past; I saw no per-
son upon the hay ; 1 did not see the prisoner there: in get-
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ting the hay 1 was upon the baulks, and 1 heard nobody. 1
used to clean the prisoner’s shoes; 1 cleaned 'them on the
Friday morning ; but' did not clean them o the Saturday
night. 1 recollect prisoner’s brother, Thomas, coming to
the house on the Saturday morning ; he knocked at the door
and said [}liit}l'lf"l was wanted ; heard no whispering at the
‘door. The drying hedge is about a hundred vards from the
Thouse ; he saw the hﬂ{lge on Saturday, but did not see any
clothes upon it.

17th witness.---Mary Spinnett. 1 amniece to the prisorer;
1 was at his house on Saturday the 22d of Marel. On the
morning of this day 1 saw the prisoner about' nine o'clock;
standmg n the house. 1 told him my uncle (the prisoner’s
‘brother) had been enquiring for himn, and seemed to'be angry
that he was not in the way. 1 did not ask the prisoner where
he had been. ‘1 was backwards and forwards about the house
on Saturday, but did not see any clothes drying on' the
hedge. 1 did not take particular rotice. Wlien at the back
door, he hedge was in sight. 1 heard nothing of the prison-
‘er-having lost his clothes : ; nor of clothes bemg hung - c-ut to
-dry, nor of'clothes being wet.

By the Court.---1 heard nothing of clothes bemg lﬂst dm:'-
ing Saturday, nor on the “hmday morning. -

Mary MurrBY was again called, and onderwent an ex- -
amination and cross-examination as to-her knowlege of the
azor not being in her brother’s house, but nothing material
was elicited ; she spoke pm-.ltnulv as to ils not lnwmg been
thiere beforé the committal of the murder. '

18th witness.— Esther Brown. On the 21st ol March last
1 lived with the prisoner. After milking the cows on the Fri-
day night, he told me to lock the doot, if ‘he did not come
h-:}me before 1 went to bed ; he never toldmieto do so ‘before.
He did not come hnme before 1 went to” bed, and 1 locked
the door about nine o’clock. 1saw him the next morning,
at the top of Dry Field, between nine and ten o'cleck. He
then came to the house. 'When he first came in he went up
stairs. 1 saw him when he came down sitting'by the fire ; he
puton a fresh pair of stockings; they were not elean, but
dirty ones; 1 saw him wash his garters. 1 know the drying
hedge at the back of the house; 1 saw it on the Saturday,
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but saw no clothes drying.” 1 heard nothing said of clothes
being wet, nor any thing about clothes being missing or
stolen.

(Here the foreman of the jury intimated a wish that a ques-
tion might be put to witness, which he stated, and which was
put by the court as follows—Did you observe what clothes
your master had on before he went up stairs ? I did not take
notice. Did you observe whether the clothes he wore after
he came down stairs were different to those he had on before
he went up? 1 do not remember having taken notice.)

RoBeERT THONILEY was again called, and examined as to
the razor. When 1 saw the razor on Saturday the 22d,
there was no blood upon it. 1 am sure there had been no
such razor in our house.

19th witness—John Cheetham. 1 am surgeon, and reside
at Gee Cross. 1 was examined before the inquest which sat
on the body of the deceased. 1 examined the body on the
Saturday, after it had been taken into Mr. Murrey’s kitchen.
On being desired to state the condition in which he foundthe
corpse, the witness proceeded as follows :—1 found 2 wounds
on the top of the head, down to the bone, about an inch and
an eighth long, which appeared to have been inflicted with
a blunt instrument ; there was another wound on the back
part of the head, also made by a blunt instrument, much like
that of a knife. There was another wound upon the neck
on the leftside, five inches long, just above the coliar bone,
and extended across it ; this wound appeared to have been
caused by a sharp instrument; the jugular vein was.entirel
cut in two. Two bruises appeared on the left hand, and
seemed to be occasioned by having put her hand to save the
blows on the head : there was a small bruise upon the eheck.
The thumb of her right hand was cut longitudinally to its
whole extent, and seemed to have been made by being drawn
across a sharp instrument. The wound in her neck was
alone sufficient to account for her death, from excessive loss
of blood. On being asked whether the deceased was with
child, witness said, she was evidently in a pregnantstate ; five
or six months gone with child.

Here the evidence for the prosecution closeds when the
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counsel for the prisoner proceeded merely to call W]tl‘lE"SFJ
as to the prisoner’s character.

Captain Humphreys—I1 have known the prlsmner for 13
ears : he was a near neighbour to me ; 1 saw him daily.
During all that time, he was justly esteemed and beloved l:-_}f '

all who knew him.

Thomas Hulme—1 am a farmer, and was a near neighbour
to the prisoner. I have known him from his cradle ; he was
always been a sober, industrious kind of man ; no man was
better respected, until this unfortunate business happened.

Thomas Bythell—1 am a farmer, and was a near neigh-
bour to the prisoner; 1 have known him from a child; his
character has always been excellent, and he belongs to an
honest family,

PETER BROWN.---1 am a labouring man, a weaver, 1 have
known thé prisoner ever since he was born. In his charac-
ter I have never known any thing but good ; his family is as’
respectable asany in the nmghbourhmd

The names of several ﬂther persons were called, who did
not appear.

The evidence on both sides h:wmo' concluded,

Cuter JusTICE WARREN stated the purport of the indict-
ment, and proceeded to read the whole of the evidence to the
jury, commenting upon the various circumstances connected
with the case with great ability and precision, which occu-
pied nearly an hour. We shall not attempt to follow his Lord-
ship in detail, but merely give a summary of those strong
points of evidence ﬂg.lmst the prisoner, on which he dwelt, in
order to assist the jury to come to a correct verdict. In being
this, we shall state them as they occured to us, Jthnut
following the precise order in which they were delivered :---

1. Thatthe prisoner had an intimacy with the deceased;
hea is seen with herin the month of January in the character
of a suitor ; and she is known to be pregnant.

2, A letter from the deceased is traced to be prisoner on
the very day before the murder; and he afterwards acknow-
ledges that in that letter she expresses a desire to see him.

3. He is proved by several witnesses to be ab-
sent from his own house from the hour of half past six at
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night till from nine to ten the next morning, during which
interval this barbarous murder is committed.

4. One witness, who was the last person who saw him
upon his own premises, deposes to having seen him leave
his house, and take the road leading to the residence of the
unfortunate woman—at from six to seven in the evening;
another swears to have seen him pass through Stockport on
the same night, still pursuing the direction of Bredbary,
about the same hour—[It must here be noted, that asthe
distance between the prisoner’s house and Stockport isstated
to be three miles, the testimony of one witness who speaks to
his having left his home at nearly seven, and that of another
who swears to his having seen him at Stockport between siv
and geven, may seem GDHtI“L(]ICtUI‘}T, but this is satisfactorily
reconciled by the testimony of a third witness, who swears,

that the clocks at Bramall are more forward than those of
Stock port. |

5. Itis proved by Tﬂermll}r that Betty Shaweceross was
absent from her master’s house for a considerable time dur-
ing the latter part of that evening ; and that she had particu-
larly requested him not to make the door against her—a cir-
cumstance, taken in connexion with the prisoner’s known
approach to the place, and the urgency with which her let-
ter had been forwarded, and his acknowledgment that it
contained a request from her to see him, forms a strong pre-
sumption that the unhappy culprit was then about the pre-
mises, and in her company.

6. As to the fatal instrument by which the mortal wound
was inflicted, if not traced directly to be the property of the
prisoner, it cannot be otherwise accounted for, than upon
this presumption. Miss Murrey, who is the mistress of. her
brother’s house, speaks |::¢:-511.1ve1',r of her own knowledge that
the razor had not been in the premises, and her testimony is
confirmed by Thornilly, who deposes to the same fact. On
the other hand, the witness Hodgkinson, if he does not posi-
tively swear that it was the same last year in the possession of
the prisoner, affirms it resemblesit, a givessuch a description
as renders the fact all but certain. Besides, when Barrett
.&earches the hnuse of the prisoner no such article is found
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there: still more, the prisoner makes no attempt to produce
the razor which Hodgkinson swears was in his pnssesﬁiun.
7. On the morning following the murder, by seven o’clock,

prisoner is seen ander very susplcmus circumstlances coming
towards his own house, in a direction from the place where
the erime was perpetrated : the moment he discovers he is
seen, he precipitately flies, and runsaway from observation,
and in a contrary way from that in which he was advancing.
Suc h a proceeding can only be rationally accounted for, by
concluding that there was sometbing in his appearance which
he wished to conceal : and it should also be remarked, that
the witness who swears to this fact, was the last person who

saw him on that day dressed in the clothes he had worn the
day before.

8. The different ways in which the prisoner accounted for his absence
from his own house on the night of the 21st, besides being flatly disproved,
are pregnant with the strongest suspicion. At first he affirms, that he set off
for Tolt on the evening of Friday, and after travelling ten miles out of twelve,
turned back on account of the witness of the night ; that he reached home at
two in the morning, and in his wet clothes creeps into a hay loft on his own
premises sleeps there till ten o’clock the next day. Is it credible, that the
head of a family, his clothes drenched in wet, has he pretends, after walking 20
miles in the mrrht would seek a hay-loit for repose, when he  might have
called his servants, of whom he had several, to open to him the door of his
own habitation ? In subsequently admitting the falsity of this statement, he
is as unhappy in giving the next, He says, that havingz been l:'harged by the
keeper at Bramall hall with setting gins and killing game. he was desirous of
clearing himself from the inipuiation, and on the evening of Friday, went in-
to the tields to watch for poachers, where he remained ull rive o’clock, and
then, for fear of disturbing the family, Jaid him down on the hay in an out-
boilding, and remained till ten. This story is still more suspiunus than the
former ;—tor about the hour of five was thetime when his servauts rose, and
the doors of his house would be open to bim. Besides, these witnesses dis-
linclly disprove this account.  Hamilton swears he never had any conversa-
tion with prisoner respecting setling gins or destroying game; Ridgway de-

oses, that he saw the prisoner at Croft Bridge at seven ¢’clock that morning;
and Hallworth swears that when he fetched hay for the cattle, neither the
prisoner nor any other person was there. It is very difficult to find a mo-
tive for such conduct, as that pursued by the pria-:.\uer, without attaching to it
suspicions ol the stfongest nature.

9. But the strongest, and on a suspicion of innocence, the most inexpli-
cable circumstance of this transaction is, that the clothes the prisoner was seen
in when he left his house on the Friday evening, and which he had on when
first seen at seven the next morning ; (in which interval the murder was per-
petrated) has never since been heard of; or at least no account has been
given of them but what is full of falsehood and the grossest improbability.—
At first the prisoner denied that he had a black coat; and affirmed the
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waistcoat he wore at Stockport, onthe Friday, was a striped one; and that
the only article of wearing apparel he then had on unacconnted for, was his cor-
duroy small clothes, which he had hang upon the hedse to dry, and they
were stolen—His storv be'ore the coroner was, an admission that hie had a
black ¢oat and waistcoat, and said, that these, together with his smull clothes,
had allbeenbung to dry,and they were all stolen. Five witnesses positively
swore to his IIzﬂu'iilg on a black coat and waisteoat on the Friday ; and fonr
witneszes, members of his own family, as positively deposed, that they had
never seen any clothes hung on the hedge to drv during the whole of the
Satarday ; that the prisoner had never made any enquiry about such
clothes; and that be never complained of ’[un'ing lost any. If theretore,
these witnesses, who all concurred in the same story, were to be credited,
how impossible it is that the prisoner’s story be conld true ; and if talse, how
easy would it have leen for him to have produced them. e did net pro-
duce them, however, nor account for t hem in any other way than was an
ebvious impossibility.

Such were the principal circumstances to which the Chief Justice directed
the attention of the jury. But although we could catch the general topics
of his Lordship’s address, we were unable, from the low tone of voice in
which he spole, to collect the reasonings and inferences he drew from them.
We therefore wish it to be understood, that the deductions and observations
arising-from the above enumeration of facts, are rather the result of our own
views than precise sentiments of the Chief Justice. Having gone through
the evidence and his comments, he requested the jury to give to all the cir-
cumstances collectively their serious consideration. If they should be of
opinion that the murder charged upon the prisoner was committed by him,
it was their duty, however painful, to find a verdict of guilty ; if, on the con-
trary, they thonght the charge had not been satisfactorily proved, they must
acquit him ; and if they had any, doubts upon the subject, they must allow
those doubts to operate in favour of the prisoner,

- After a moment’s consultation, the jury requested permission to with-
draw; and retired aceordingly. - After being out of eourt ahout twenty-six
minutes, they returned, and the foreman delivered the fatal verdict of
GUILTY.

A short pauseand a profound silence ensued ; the customary questions be-
inz put to thie prisoner, what he had to say, why sentence of death shpuld
ot be passed against him, he did not vtter. a syllable. His Lordship then,
placing nis hat upon his head, proceeded <to: pass the awful sentence of the
law. The extreme low tone voice in which the Judge addressed the prisoner
precluded our hearing but.now and then a sentence.  Iis Lordship
observed to the prisoner, that he had been indicted for one of the highest
offences known totiie laws, the crime of willul murder ; and it now only re-

‘mained for him to pass the sentence which the faw directed. A great nom-

bet of facts had been brought forward inproof of the perpetration of the
offence, which exhibited the most lamentable proof of a depraved mind.

- Thejiry had had a mast painful duty to perform, and they had acquitted
themselves most conseientionsly. It was unnecessary for iim lo expuliate on
the enormity of the deed ; no words could express the atrociousnese of the

- eircunstances under which it was perpetrated. * You,” continued his

Lordship,  seduced the young woman, end killed at once the mother and the

L ] *
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child”” Such is the aggrevation of your offence. If wou have a proper
view and feeling of the horrid transaction, you must suffer more acutely

Jrom the recollection of the offence, than you can from the fear of punishment.
Those feeling should be greatly aggravated also from the excellent character
which you have received from yeur neighbours, and those who have had an op-
portunity of knowing you. But Iwill not dwell upon the principal subject.
Let me, however, remind you, that Monday next will be the last day you will
behold the light of the sun. Repent earnestly of your great offen ce, seck
grace and for giveness without delay, and may heaven great merey upon you.
You have becn convicted to the entive satisfuction of the jury, and no mercy
can be evtended to you in this world—The sentence of the law is—That you
Lé taken to the place from whence you came, and from thence to the place
of execution, and that you be hanged by the neck until you are dead, and
your body be given to the surgeons for dissection. And may the Lord have
mercy upon your soul!!!

- === = R ———

OBSERVATIONS,

The above unfortunate young man has very respectable connections in the
neighbourhood from whence he eame; he was, we are credibly informed,
the youngest of eleven children ; was always a distinguished favourite with
his tather, who bequeathed to him the lease of the farm at Bramall, which
ne himselt had long occupied. From the excellent character he received*

— L]

* The following letter, written on the morning after the conviction of Fal-
lowes, by Capt. Humphreys, R. N. to a lady at a distance, develops several
circumstances of a highly interesting nature, both in reference to the unfor-
tunate nian’s general character, anil the state of mind in which he appeared
after the awful sentence of the law was passed upon him:

“ Hotel Chester, Saturday, April 12¢h, 1823.

“ Dear Mapam.—Yesterday, Samuel Fallowes, atier a myst interestin
trial, which lasted from 9 in the morning until 4 in the evening, was foun
guilty of the wilful murder of Betty Shaweross. Messrs. Cross and Williams
were retained for the defence, but they could do nothing for him ; the evi-
dence was of course only circumstantial, but, although 28 witnesses were
examined, the chain of ecircumstances were so admirably hioked together,
that it was evident the mind of each spectator was fully convinced of Samuel
Fallowes being the man. 1 was examined with regard to his conduct to Mary
Coups, snd detailed to the court the conversation I had with priscner, on the
evening preceding his intended marriage with her—and he also calleld upon
me to speak to his general character, previous to his attachment to either of
these persons—and as it had always been excellent, I bad no hesitation in
stating that he was justly esteemed and beloved by all that knew him. Samuel
Failowes was decidedly the handsomest man in court, 24 years of age, about
six feet high, with an open and fine countenance. [ have seen him alone in
his cell, since condemnation, and the interview, as you will, dear Madam,
immagine, was mest affecting ; we talked of the advice 1 hod given him to
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‘on his trial. a better conduct than that he has unhappily manifested, might
have been expected; and we are sor Ty to say, as we shall have hcrLatLe,r to
remark, that the enormity of his erime has not been followed by that i inge-
nous contrition which might have been hoped. From the momeut of his
apprehension to the hour of his trial, he neither appeared to be imoressed
with the magnitude of his offence, nor of the temporal danger of his awful
situation. He never appeared to aaticipate conviction; on every occasion
he has betrayed an apathy aad indifforence which can oaly be accounted for
by the possession of an unusual portion of pride, obstinacy, and obduracy.
From the time of his being taken up to that of the appalling sentence of
Guilty ! he appears to have buoyed himsell up with the flattering expecta-
tion that the evidence to be brought ngaillst him was insuflicient to sus-
tain the charge. 'The correctness of these remarks is fully justifyed by that
apparent indifference which he diﬁplm‘ad during the very long examinations
at the trial, which lasted from nine o’clock in the morning to half-past four
mtl‘leaﬁ:nnnnn It was our lot to be stationed neir the unfortunate man
during the appalling investigation, and wea declare from beginning to end,
we were unabled to discover the slirhtest alteration in bis countenance, or
the remotest expression of emotion. While the iatal instrument he had
employed, and ‘more than probable employed at’a moment of unsus-
pecting endearment and tenderness—while this weapon ol blood and death
was bandying abont among the witnesses, and immediately placed before his

¢+ view, not a muscle of his face,—not a feature of his couateniuce was af-

fected. The affzcting description of the mangled and lacerated body of his
devoted victim ; the recital of the lakes of blood which lay under and near
to her manglﬂd corps ; the horrifying exhibition of he long hair clotted with
eoajulated blood,—the story of her dishevelled dress |_',mrr seattered around
her; the history of the mortal waound in her throat; her bruises in the head,
and the less serions, but not less interesting cuts in .her hands, which she
had ineffectually lifted up to implore pity, or avert cruelty ; these tales of
harror, which thrilled through the bosom of numberless individuals present,
appeared to have noinfluence in moving the feelings of the man who had
been the author of the awful history.

~ During the period of the jury being out of cousrt, the prisoner was per-
mitted to sit down on aseat in the bar; yet, during the eventtul time of sus-
pense, we could see no traces of solicitude or ‘llnletv ; he sucked an orange
ale a biscuit with perfect sang froid,—nor did the “life destroying sentence

matry Mary, which he now, alas! too late, laments most bitterly be did
not follow, When I left him and shook him by the hand, he was crying
aloud, and his sorrow and repentance are sincere. Whatever might bave
been my feelings towards him, for his perfidious conduct te Mary Coups,
they are now entirely subdued, and in his fall from virtue to vice, I only see

another striking example of the weakness of our nature.

¢« With respects to your father and iamily, :
* [ have the honour to remain, _
“ Dear Madam, -
= Your faithful and obedient Servant,

«8S. P, HUMPHREYS,
“P. 8. Mary Coups was not called upon, but was in attendance.”
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of GUIiLTY ! produce anyvisible change in his countenance. I was not until
the Chief Justice hod come to the latter part of his address, that his nerves
betrayed a momentary slwulnng; and that appeared to arise more from
mortified pride than a fecling of desert. We regret to add to this me-
lancholy putursx that b ‘:‘:tll}‘:i_t]llt nt behayiour did tot evinee a :;haugn for
the better in his temper and dispesition; he remained reserved and sallen all
the iu”{}“lll" day ; and notwitnstanding the kind attentions of Mr. Dunstan
the covernor, and the Rev. Mr. Ayckbown, the {hdpl.lll’l of the castle, he
studiously eluded all questions that aimed at extorting an ingenuous confes-’
sion ‘of the murder. ' Tt ‘was with 'the utmost dbﬂl(‘l.‘l]i}, and sml‘{ely without
toree, that Fallowes could be iuduced to attend divine sérvice in the morning -
of Sunday in the chapel; and in the afternoon of ‘that day, he actually re-
fused, excusing himself on a ground which afterwards proved to be false.

The fnllnwmg circemstances have come to our knowledge.—On  the 18th
of March, Fallowes sent‘to Mary Coups by a nutrhhﬂur, that on the 33d~
(the day on which he was aimpmhended} on the followi ing Sunday, he would
come to see her. The prisoner had also promised to 1111!‘['}' Betty Shaweross
on the 23d. ' Although upon the trial, only one interview was proved be-
tween the latter and Fallowes, it is well known they frequently met on the -
market days at Stockport. From the accountthat the deceased gave, it was
nnrlerstnn:l they were soon to be married, and she had told her mistress she
niust icave her service at the end of March ; she had alse informed a- nEigh-
bour that the wedding was fixed for the 23d of March, at Manchester, by
license, and that Fallowes had desired it might be very private, and that she
would not name it to any one.

e

© Day of Execution.
- I

The sun of Monday morning was the last that arose on the earthly career
of Samuel Fallowes. Ithad been arranged, thataccording to the plan adopted,
in the two last county executions,’ the malefactor should be conveyed early
in the morning from the castie to the city gaol, instead of I.uem,g dragged
through the city at mid-day, amidst an ‘immense concourse of people at a
inoment but just before they were to be launched into eternity.  From the:
best authority we learn, that on Sunday night, Fallowes retained that fivm.
and uodaunted appearance which we have before had oceasion to notice in
him. He stripped and went to rest sooun after ten, and the persen wha
occasionally attended him, assured us that he appeared to sleep with great
composure. About four o’clock he arpse and dressed himself; and pre-
sently after, his bother and sister were admitted to an mlerﬂew with him.
One of the first questions the culprit asked was, whether they had brought
him his old clothes; they replied in the affirmative. Having had haif a
bowl of coffee at Mr. Dunstan’s at five o’clock, he was taken on foot out of
the Debtor’s door in the castle ; and was escorted by the under-sheriff and
officers to Glover’s stone, whese he was delivered to the.city sheriffs, whe .
were in attendance with a carl, to carry him to the city ganl During this

e i

e —————— iy
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sval k, Be trod wisn a firm'step, and did not betray the least symptom af
wea kness, Miounted on a seat placed in the cait, he was thus conveyed te
his fi, nal estination; and although it was so early in the murning, a vast con-
vour «s& of people had assembled to witness the mournful procession, which
-pr oceeded through the archway in front of the castle, along Nicholas-street
ant 1 Watergate-street, to the city gaol. The- chaplain attended him in the
‘gac )1; but notwithstanding the most pressing solicitations and entreaties, Fal-
tov ves declined making anylconfession. There is every reason to believe that
- b is procedure was determined upon between him and his relations, who mis-
takingly, not to say cruelly, probably advised it, to prevent some supposed
-reproach falling on them. This is the more probable, as the prisoner, in the
course of the merning said, when urged to the salutary step. eaid, “ I ran
_say nothing till [ see my brother and sister’® This interview took place
_spon after, and from thatmoment, Fallowes appeared more determined te
_xesist all such requests, the utmost which he could be brought to say being,
«that he had confessed to God.”” It is exceedingly to be regretted, that this
. false pride of his connections should have so far prevailed over the unfortu-
_naie man as to prevent him from unbosoming his conscience, and thus ob-
structing the way to a throne of mercy. -The evidence upon the trial, which
we have given at length, is such as to assure the most serupulous wind of the
-correctness of the verdict; Lutstill, for the sake of the unhappy criminal, it
1 is desirable that he should have made a direct confession. - The nearest ap-
_proach to such an object was his saying, Ihave confessed to God. These
_vegrets, however, are accompanied with this consolation, that the unfortu-
_nafe man has never had the hardihood since his conviction to insinuate that
e was innocent. While at the city goal, be stripped, and put on an inferiot
suit of clothes ; and an eye witness informs us, he performed this act with-
_out any apparent concern. A little while before the hour of execu-
tion, the Rev. Mr. Ayckbown administered to- him the holy sacrament,
‘and piously assisted him in his devotions, We forgot to state, that previous
to this time, he had taken three cups of coffee, .and a proportionate quantity
of bread and butter for his breakfast, since his arrival at the goal. At the re-
) guest of the culprit, the devotions were performed before he went on the
platform, which he ascended with agility, and with a firm and unwavering
" step ; and those who had the nearest and steadiest view of him, affirm, that
_during the awful process. of fastening and adjusting the rope, there was not
the slightest marks of trepidation observable about him. lle was not above
three minutes outside the gaol, during which the chaplain in vain pressed the
_mecessity and advantage of confession. He seemed to pay no regard to the
surronnding multitude, and did not appear even to look at them. Aboul
one o’clock, every preparation being made, the drop fe!l, and the poor un-
fortunate was launched into a world of spirits. He struggled hard for two
. ar three minutes. The body of this fine young fellow is ordered to be
given to the surgeons of the infirmary.

_J. LEIGH, PRINTER.
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